
 
Barstow Area Consortium for Adult Education 

Board MINUTES - Unofficial 
 

Wednesday, November 6, 2024 (9:30 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.) 
(¤Materials in Board Packet) 

In-Person at Barstow Community College – Board Room 
2700 Barstow Rd., Barstow, CA 92311 

PLEASE NOTE: Agenda related documents distributed to the BACAE Board for the Board Meeting may be 
viewed in the President’s Office at Barstow Community College, 2700 Barstow Rd, Barstow, CA 92311. 
Individuals who require special accommodation, including but not limited to an American sign language 
interpreter, accessible seating, or documentation in accessible formats, should contact the BACAE Coordinator 
at erivera@barstow.edu at least two days before the meeting date. 

 
Attending: 9:30am   Voting Member Voting Member Attendee 
 Baker Valley   Milan Stijepovic  Mike Esposito  
 Barstow CC   Eva Bagg   Jennifer Rodden   
           
 Barstow AS   Scott Godfrey  Douglas Beaton       Michelle Colleoc 
     Deanna Swearingen 
 Silver Valley   Jeff Youskievicz  Brice Scott        
 Consortium Staff  Elena Rivera  Jacqueline Diaz   Katherine Matta 
 Guests    Laura Alvarado                
 
¤Approval of Minutes – October 31, 2024  

Motioned to approve as revised by J. Youskievicz,  2nd D. Beaton   Motion Passes Unanimously 

1. Public Comment – Public comment will be allowed on any topic relevant to the BACAE. Pursuant to BACAE 
Policy, comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. Please begin your comment by stating your name. 

 
2. Closed Session – None Requested 

 
3. Guest Speakers – None 

 
4. Action Items 

 
7.1 ¤NOVA Carryover Compliance Written Expenditure Plan –  

Motion to approve the NOVA Carryover Compliance Written Expenditure Plan, as 
amended, including the transfer of $100,000 from Barstow Adult School to the Barstow 
Area Consortium for Adult Education. 

Motion to approve by D. Swearingen; 2nd  J. Rodden    Motion Passes Unanimously 

8. Announcements 

8.1 Next BACAE Board Meeting Date: Thursday, February 20, 2025, 8:00am to 10:00am at Barstow 
Community College – Administration Bldg. Board Room 

 
9. Adjournment: 10:21am  

       Motion to approve by J. Youskievics  ; 2nd  M. Esposito 

mailto:erivera@barstow.edu


 
   
 

1 
 

CAEP Carryover Compliance: Best Practices 

(post webinars October 9 and 16, 2024) 

Overview AB 1491 (Carryover Legislation)  

• Authorizes a consortium to reduce a member’s allocation by no more than the amount of 

the member’s carryover, as defined, if the consortium makes a finding by a majority vote, 

based on the member having excessive carryover for at least two consecutive fiscal years 

beginning with the 2023–24 fiscal year, that the member has been consistently ineffective in 

providing services that address the needs identified in its adult education plan. There is no 

percentage threshold mandated in AB 1491 that is specific to member carryover, unless it is 

determined by the individual consortium.  

• Requires a consortium with carryover from one or more prior fiscal years exceeding 20% to 

submit a written expenditure plan, as specified, to the Chancellor and the Superintendent, 

and would require the Chancellor and the Superintendent to prescribe and assign technical 

assistance to that consortium to ensure effective use of funds as specified by existing policy, 

and that the consortium’s annual carryover does not continue. 

• CAEP Education Code  section 84901 and section 84914 have been amended to reflect the 

definition of carryover, member carryover, and the consortium carryover 

• Timeline FY 2023-2025 

 

Resources: 

• AB 1491 Guidance (Memo) 

•  FAQ 

• Carryover Compliance Webinar I 

• Carryover Compliance Webinar II 

• Strategic Planning Materials 

• Technical Assistance 

o Send a Support Request https://caladulted.org/TAP or  

o Email at tap@caladulted.org (might be a good starting point if you are inquiring on 

behalf of a school district) or 

o Email at CCCTap@NOCE.edu (optimal starting point if you are inquiring on behalf of 

a college district)  

o Send a request for a 1:1 zoom session 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=84901.&article=9.&highlight=true&keyword=carryover
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=84914.&article=9.&highlight=true&keyword=carryover
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1297
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1295
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1298
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1377
https://caladulted.org/Administrators/379
https://caladulted.org/TAP
https://tap@caladulted.org/
mailto:CCCTap@NOCE.edu


 
   
 

2 
 

 

 

BEST PRACTICES 

Equity: 

• Lead and design with equity in mind: How might your carryover expenditure plan directly 

impact students? 

• Invest in onboarding strategies and programs for specific student cohorts. 

• Consider implementing or expanding Adult Education Dual Enrollment (SB 554) programs 

with student support and services geared to adult learners. 

Policies: 

• Review by-laws and other governance documents for inclusion of language that specifies 

how carryover funds are reported, monitored, and distributed. 

o West End Corridor Chaffey Regional Adult Education Consortium Bylaws 

o South Bay Consortium for Adult Education Bylaws  

o State Center Adult Education Consortium Bylaws  

o San Diego Adult Education Regional Consortium Bylaws  

• Review how Member Effectiveness is addressed: 

o Los Angeles Regional Adult Education developed a Monitor-Review Report template 

for its members (under LARAEC Policies and Procedures Documents) 

o San Diego Adult Education Regional Consortium (SDAERC) Effectiveness Survey 

• Agree on clear definitions of what constitutes a majority and consider developing a tie-

breaking procedure that focuses on student impact and CAEP programs. 

o Mt. Sac Regional Consortium published a Report in Governance Compliance of Rules 

and Procedures (Mt.SAC) 

• Agree on a Progressive Permanent Reallocation process: 

o Shasta Tehama Trinity Adult Education consortium Bylaws (page 7) 

• Make review of carryover funds a frequent agenda item at consortium leadership and 

executive meetings. 

• Commit to site visits to consortium member meetings to see how bylaws are implemented 

at the member level. 

• Make review of CAEP requirements and consortium policies and activities a frequent 

agenda item at district level. 

https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1264
https://www.westendcorridor.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/West-End-Corridor-Bylaws-April-2023.pdf
https://sbcae.org/governance/bylaws/
https://statecenteraec.org/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/SCAEC-Bylaws-APPROVED-08-09-24.pdf
https://sdcce.edu/sites/default/files/sdaerc/SDAERC%20Governance%20Charter%20FINAL%20Approved%202018.pdf
https://laraec.org/consortium/
https://sdcce.edu/sites/default/files/2023%20SDAER%20Consortium%20Effectiveness%20Survey%20%281%29.pdf
http://www.mtsac-rc.org/documents/Consortium%20Documents/Governance-Plan-2023-Approved-2023-04-17-Final.pdf
http://www.mtsac-rc.org/documents/Consortium%20Documents/Governance-Plan-2023-Approved-2023-04-17-Final.pdf
https://better.jobs/wp-content/uploads/2024/09/STTAEC-Bylaws-Approved-1.20.22.pdf


 
   
 

3 
 

Plans 

• Ensure that the Three-Year Strategic Plan and annual plans address consortium carryover 

policies. 

• Collaborate with a consultant/subject matter expert who can support the development of 

the Three-Year Strategic Plan with evaluating consortium effectiveness, project 

management, and member-specific analysis of community needs, equity gaps, and program 

strengths 

• Set up a member effectiveness committee that oversees the carryover, reviews innovations 

proposals submitted by consortium members, and makes recommendations for the 

reallocation of funds. 

• Develop a Decision-Making Protocol 

o North Orange County Regional Consortium for Adult Education (NOCRC) developed 

a Strategic Proposal Decision-Making process.  

▪ Strategic proposals are created by adult education providers, vetted by 

advisory groups and then submitted to the CAEP Director for review. The 

proposals are then presented as recommendations to the NOCRC Executive 

Committee (EC) for discussion and approval.  

▪ NOCRC advisory group members use the consensus-based decision-making 

model. If consensus cannot be reached, the decision is made by the majority of 

votes prior to being presented to EC. The only item that advisory groups are 

permitted to authorize are budget transfers under $60,000, which must be 

presented as an informational item to EC. The NOCRC Executive Committee 

voting members have the authority to vote on activities, proposals, budgets, 

and other items required by the grant, the consortium’s protocols and Decision-

Making Guidelines.  

▪ The CAEP Director reviews the recommendations for compliance with the grant 

requirements and “good use of funding” and works with NOCRC advisory 

group leader(s) to address questions or concerns, if necessary.  

▪ CAEP Director seeks State approval as required for certain expenses, e.g., 

capital outlay. 

▪ Finally, the recommendations are presented to EC members for a vote. 

▪ Additional resources and be found at https://www.nocrcae.org/resources/  

Fiscal Management: 

• Follow local policy and guidance outlined in the CAEP Fiscal Management Guide 

https://www.nocrcae.org/resources/
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1300


 
   
 

4 
 

o Provide professional development for staff to gain clarity on allowable and 

unallowable expenses 

• Community Colleges might also consult the Chancellor’s Office Budget and Accounting 

Manual and the proposed 2024 revisions  for additional reference. 

• Set up monthly meetings with fiscal department 

• Provide consortium-specific due dates for expenditures reports on agenda meetings and 

website and send regular reminders via email 

• Provide an expenditure summary at each public consortium meeting 

• Conduct quarterly monitoring meetings with all members, at least two weeks before reports 

are due in NOVA 

Program Development  

• Follow the CAEP Program Guidance 

• Allocate funds to curriculum development and initial implementation 

o NOCE developed a noncredit parenting class as part of an early childhood education 

program, High enrollment numbers made possible further development of credit-

level courses  

• Analyze course enrollment, retention, and completion data for effectiveness and impact.  

• Create an innovation fund for members to apply and receive funds when they do not have 

carryover. 

• Set up enrollment and completion targets for the three-year plan and for each annual plan. 

• Consider implementing or expanding Adult Education Dual Enrollment (SB 554)  programs 

with student support and services geared to adult learners 

Professional Development: 

• Offer presentations to district leadership. 

• Participate in district-wide professional development events by offering CAEP-specific 

workshops. 

Outreach 

• Review your consortium’s website and online presence for impact. Consider four distinct 

user groups: students, districts, business partners, community partners 

• Work with a contractor to create multi-media stories of student success. 

 

Capital Outlay 

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cccco.edu%2F-%2Fmedia%2FCCCCO-Website%2FFiles%2FFinance-and-Facilities%2Fbudget-and-accounting-manual-2012-edition-ada.pdf%3Fla%3Den%26hash%3D97696D7DAA8FDFD0240EFD9267C83405E00AAE0B&data=05%7C02%7Cute.maschke.te%40NOCE.EDU%7C6859b3e5b7df43dd745908dceef22b62%7C3b6e92c18a6a44d78cb9f3bee674dc2c%7C0%7C0%7C638647971118721626%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FjifAeKK%2BzyvbR9N2UjfGHclFRGSwHUQnBNLOQVzTM4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cccco.edu%2F-%2Fmedia%2FCCCCO-Website%2FFiles%2FFinance-and-Facilities%2Fbudget-and-accounting-manual-2012-edition-ada.pdf%3Fla%3Den%26hash%3D97696D7DAA8FDFD0240EFD9267C83405E00AAE0B&data=05%7C02%7Cute.maschke.te%40NOCE.EDU%7C6859b3e5b7df43dd745908dceef22b62%7C3b6e92c18a6a44d78cb9f3bee674dc2c%7C0%7C0%7C638647971118721626%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FjifAeKK%2BzyvbR9N2UjfGHclFRGSwHUQnBNLOQVzTM4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cccco.edu%2F-%2Fmedia%2FCCCCO-Website%2Fdocs%2Fmanuals-guides%2Fchapter-4-a11y.pdf%3Fla%3Den%26hash%3DE788BEA7B3F2FD0458F26D59AEF2C1005C1E4E2D&data=05%7C02%7Cute.maschke.te%40NOCE.EDU%7C6859b3e5b7df43dd745908dceef22b62%7C3b6e92c18a6a44d78cb9f3bee674dc2c%7C0%7C0%7C638647971118745029%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=i0Z8ATURi7cWdSCABKYsYaXklw%2BLxcd6IyoGQY0w7Ek%3D&reserved=0
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1301
https://caladulted.org/DownloadFile/1264


 
   
 

5 
 

• Evaluate the need for and impact of one-time expenses such as 

o Campus facilities’ upgrades 

o Equipment (such as a commercial truck) 

• Funds for this type of expenditure can be allowable as long as the purchase/acquisition is 

used for students enrolled in the CAEP program areas and it is ensured that the district is 

following local procurement policies and procedures. (EC Section 84913, CAEP Program 

Guidance, p.13).  

• Consortium members are responsible for allocation decisions. CAEP expenditure must be 

reasonable and justifiable. In this context, “reasonable” means that expenditures will be 

made prudently and with every effort to utilize funds efficiently, and “justifiable” means that 

expenditures are consistent with CAEP program goals and activities related to the seven 

program areas as identified in the CAEP Program budget language.  

• As outlined in the CAEP Fiscal Management Guidance, all allowable costs must meet 

three primary criteria (p. 12):  

o Substantiate that the cost was necessary and reasonable for proper and effective 

administration of the allocations.  

o The cost must be allocable to the funding source activities. 

o The cost must not be a general expense required to carry out the consortia member’s 

overall responsibilities (i.e. not supplanting).  

 Staffing 

• Work with HR department to make hiring of instructors, counselors, and onboarding and 

support staff for adult education a priority 

 

 


